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OVERVIEW
iEnergizer Limited, the AIM listed international Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) company 
(“iEnergizer”), announces its annual results for the year ended 31st March 2012. Combining 12 years 
of experience and comprehensive capabilities across a number of industries and business functions, 
iEnergizer collaborates with clients to provide high quality, complex processes at a significant cost 
advantage.

iEnergizer is a strategic outsourced service partner to various companies who are market leaders in 
their respective segments. Key industries serviced include BFSI, Media & Entertainment, Publication, 
Content Process Solutions, Healthcare, Technology and FMCG. 

iEnergizer provides services across the entire customer lifecycle and offers a comprehensive suite 
of Transaction Processing, Content & Publishing Process Outsourcing Solutions and Customer 
Management Services like Customer Acquisition, Customer Care, Technical Support, Billing & 
Collections, Dispute Handling and Market Research & Analytics using various platforms including 
Voice – Inbound & Outbound, Back-Office support, Online Chat, Mail Room and other web services.

HIGHLIGHTS 
•	 Placed 3 million new ordinary shares raising £7.14m ($11.06m).

•	  Completed the acquisition of Aptara Inc., United States on 7th February 2012 for a total 
cash consideration of $150.1m.

•	  Acquisition funded by way of a debt finance of $134.5m and cash. 

•	  Revenue up 46.3% at $72.2m (2011: $49.4m). Organic growth of 19.8% excluding $13m 
revenue contribution from Aptara for the period from 7 February 2012 to 31 March 2012.

•	  Underlying adjusted Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA)* 
of $22.2m (2011: $17m). 

•	  Underlying adjusted operating profit* of $21.6m (2011: $16.3m). Consolidated operating 
margins reduced to 30% (2011:32.9%), however, standalone iEnergizer margins remained 
stable at 32% (excluding $2.7m adjusted operating profit of Aptara, representing 
approximately 20% operating margins at which Aptara currently operates).

•	  Underlying adjusted profit before tax (PBT)* of $20.5m (2011: $16.3m), including a 
contribution of $1.4m from Aptara.

•	  Underlying adjusted profit after tax (PAT)* of $18.8m (2011: $15.7m), including a 
contribution of $1.2m from Aptara.

•	  Proposing a dividend of 8p per ordinary share (Total £12.24m) (2011: £8.4m). 

* The adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA), operating profit, adjusted profit before tax (PAT) 
and adjusted profit after tax (PAT) are derived by adjusting exceptional costs of (i) Aptara’s acquisition related costs of $0.93m, (ii) new 
equity placement costs of $0.13m, (iii) amortisation of intangibles acquired of $0.77m and (iv) net forex related losses on the derivative 
contracts etc; of $0.9m respectively) from the reported Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA) operating 
profit, reported profit before tax and reported profit after tax as the case may be.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
I am pleased to report that the Company has continued on its path of significant operational and 
financial progress during this financial year. 

While the underlying iEnergizer business has continued to grow organically, particularly in the 
Indian domestic BPO market, significant long term growth is expected to come from the acquisition 
of Aptara Inc., United States (“Aptara”), which was completed on 7th February 2012. 

Aptara is a leading outsourced service provider in publishing and content process solution industries. 
Aptara provides services through its 4 delivery facilities in Delhi, Pune, Trivandrum and Dehradun 
employing over 5500 persons. Aptara is expected to help iEnergizer expand its service capabilities, 
client base & markets, employees headcount, revenues and profitability in a significant manner. 
Aptara provides content process outsourcing solutions, delivering a comprehensive offering for the 
transformation and management of content such as text, audio, video and graphic assets. 

The overall outsourcing global market continues to expand as companies in the developed world, 
particularly the US, continue to exploit India’s cost advantage and outsource operations. The type of 
functions which are outsourced are increasingly sophisticated and iEnergizer is well placed to benefit 
from this as it is an essential long term partner that provides of high quality, complex processes. 

Importantly, more complex processes by nature tend to require a tailor made service for each client, 
which helps us develop deep reaching relationships that in turn result in high client retention rates. 
We also leverage these strong relationships to cross sell other outsourcing services and identify 
opportunities with new service offerings. Like iEnergizer, Aptara has pursued a long term partnership 
model with its key client base with an average relationship of over 12 years with its top 20 clients.

We believe that the supplementary varied service offering provided by the acquisition of Aptara 
makes iEnergizer well placed to take advantage of the growing BPO opportunities both in the 
developed and emerging markets. We have seen our order book increase as we grow with the 
expanding global outsourcing market and take advantage of the cross selling opportunities provided 
by our diversified service offering.

I would like to thank our management team for their leadership which has helped iEnergizer achieve 
sustainable growth over the past year. The entrepreneurial approach of the management team has 
been a true asset to the Company and has enabled us to identify new markets in addition to providing 
high quality service to our existing clients. 

SARA LATHAM 
Non-Executive Chairman
14 August 2012
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
INTRODUCTION

iEnergizer has a full service BPO offering across a range of sectors and countries with a strong 
financial track record of delivery which consists of significant growth.

I am pleased to announce that robust performance has continued this year also as the Company 
has increased the top line revenues to $72.2m, growing it by 46.3% (2011: $49.4m). This only 
includes seven weeks’ contribution of Aptara for the period from 7th February 2012 to 31st March 
2012. In light of this, the impact of Aptara’s contribution to next year’s consolidated financials will 
be significant and is expected to result in iEnergizer becoming one of the leading BPO companies in 
the markets in which it operates. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The acquisition of Aptara was completed for a total cash consideration of $150.1m, which was 
based on an enterprise valuation of $144m and cash acquisition/working capital adjustment of 
$6.1m. iEnergizer partly funded the acquisition by raising a debt finance of $134.5m (including 
$20m from EICR (Cyprus) Ltd., a major shareholder connected with Director Mr Anil Aggarwal) and 
partly from cash available with iEnergizer. 

iEnergizer also paid the maiden dividend of £8.4m ($13.6m) out of cash generated as announced 
in 2011.

During the period, iEnergizer placed three million new ordinary shares raising £7.14m ($11.06m) 
before expenses.

Revenue for the period was up 46.3% at $72.2m (2011: $49.4m). Like for like, growth in the 
underlying business was 19.8% with standalone revenue of $59.2m excluding $13m revenue 
contribution from Aptara for the period from 7th Feb 2012 to 31st March 2012. 

Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA) increased to 
$22.2m (2011: $17m). Adjusted operating profit* increased to $21.6m (2011: $16.3m) with 
consolidated operating profit margin reducing to 30% (2010: 32.9%) largely due to operating 
margins of approximately 20% ($2.8m on a revenue of $13m) at which Aptara currently operates. 
On standalone basis, the operating margin has remained stable at around 32%. Adjusted profit 
before tax (PBT)* increased to $20.5m (2011: $16.3m) including $1.4m contributed by Aptara. 
Adjusted profit after tax (PAT)* increased to $18.8m (2011: $15.7m) including $1.2m contributed 
by Aptara. 

* The adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA), operating profit, adjusted profit before tax (PAT) 
and adjusted profit after tax (PAT) are derived by adjusting exceptional costs of (i) Aptara’s acquisition related costs of $0.93m, (ii) new 
equity placement costs of $0.13m, (iii) amortisation of intangibles acquired of $0.77m and (iv) net forex related losses on the derivative 
contracts etc; of $0.9m respectively) from the reported Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization (EBIDTA) operating 
profit, reported profit before tax and reported profit after tax as the case may be.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s outsourcing services continue to be structured around industry-focused BPO services, 
including Banking Financial Services and Insurance (BFSI), Publishing, Content Process Solutions, 
Entertainment and Online Video Game, Information Technology and Telecom/Electronics as well as 
cross-industry BPO services, such as collections and customer services. 

This has been extended by the acquisition of Aptara which provides services in the following areas: 
(i) Educational Publishing, (ii) Professional publishing, (iii) e-Learning and new media publishing, 
(iv) Content transformation technology (IT) services and (v) Legal solutions. Aptara customers include 
publishers, information aggregators, professional societies, universities, corporations and non for 
profit organisations located primarily in the United States, the United Kingdom and Australia. 

We have expanded our business by leveraging established client relationships to cross sell across 
numerous verticals. This trend has been seen in both the domestic Indian BPO market and the 
international markets during the year. The acquisition of Aptara will enhance the Company’s growth 
prospects by expanding its service capabilities, client base & markets, employee headcount, revenues 
and profitability. iEnergizer will target cross selling opportunities with Apatra’s client base and as 
well as focus on bringing its cost efficient practices into Aptara’s operations with the aim to increase 
Aptara’s operating margins.

DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to announce that on the back of its strong growth and cash generation this year, 
it is proposing to pay a dividend of 8p per share with dividend record date of 24 August 2012. The 
Company Ordinary Shares are expected to go ex-dividend on 22 August 2012 and the dividend is 
expected to be paid on 7 September 2012. The Company will continue to review any future dividend 
policy with the need to utilize its cash generation for repayment of acquisition financing and invest 
in its operational growth, in-line with its long term stated requirements. The Board is committed to 
maintaining a strong but efficient balance sheet.

STRATEGY

The Company has delivered growth for its shareholders by following the strategies articulated in the 
Admission Document at the time of IPO; namely by:

•	 Expanding its revenues from the domestic Indian BPO market both by taking advantage of 
the growth in the market itself;

•	 Increasing the Company’s share of that growing market; 

•	 Growing its international client base with a focus on the US and UK markets; 

•	 Maintaining and developing long term client relationships and increasing depth and breadth 
of services provided to them; and 

•	 Differentiating itself through the quality and price at which it delivers its range of services 
by being flexible enough to evolve and provide services in complementary areas to deliver 
client orientated services. 
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•	 Undertake strategic acquisition of other market leading Business Process Outsourcing service 
providers, thus growing its client base, markets, service capabilities, revenues, profits & 
employee headcount.

The success of these strategies is evidenced in the Company’s financial and operational performance 
and the Company is focused on pursuing these to drive growth looking forward. 

CURRENT TRADING AND OUTLOOK

We continue to make progress in gaining market share within the expanding global outsourcing 
market where there are opportunities both in the domestic Indian BPO market and international 
markets. In addition, we continue to create new opportunities and develop our long term client 
relationships by increasing the depth and breadth of the services provided to them. Also, the 
acquisition of Aptara will help us grow further by providing new revenue streams and cross selling 
opportunities.

Current trading is in line with expectations and we expect the financial year 2012–13 to close with 
significant overall growth.

We continue to pursue a growth policy based on organic growth from existing operations together 
with any other opportunities which may arise.

ANIL AGGARWAL

Chief Executive
14 August 2012
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BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
SARA LATHAM (41) – CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD & NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 

Sara Latham is a former advisor to both U.S. President Bill Clinton and UK Prime Minister Tony Blair 
with over 15 years of government relations and communications experience. Sara is the founder of 
Latham Group, a London based public affairs and government relations firm with clients including 
the Coca-Cola Company, Dow, the Nelson Mandela Foundation and Time magazine. Prior to Latham 
Group, Sara served as press secretary and special advisor to UK Culture and Olympics Secretary of 
State, Tessa Jowell, and as head of Public Affairs at Freud Communications. Following the November 
2008 U.S. election, Sara returned to Washington D.C. for 3 months to serve as Chief of Staff for the 
Obama-Biden administration transition; she remains active in progressive politics in both the U.S. 
and UK.

ANIL AGGARWAL (51) – CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER. 

Anil Aggarwal is a first generation entrepreneur and is founder and promoter of iEnergizer. He has 
promoted and managed several successful businesses in various territories including Barker Shoes 
Limited in the UK. Mr. Aggarwal is primarily responsible for business development, strategy and 
overall growth for the company.

JOHN BEHAR (42) – NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 

Mr. Behar has over 16 years financial services and investment banking experience, most recently 
involved in listings on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Indian mid-market companies, as well 
as private equity transactions across a range of countries and deal sizes. He is the founder and 
MD of Prospect Capital, a London based corporate finance advisory firm, and has also acted as a 
consultant to ICICI Bank UK, part of the major Indian banking and private equity group. Mr. Behar 
holds an MBA from Cass Business School.

CHRISTOPHER DE PUTRON (38) – NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. 

Mr. de Putron is a financial services professional with over 15 years of experience in the fiduciary 
industry in both Guernsey and Bermuda. He is the managing director of Jupiter Trustees Limited and 
a director of Bartholomew Trust Company Limited, both of which are Guernsey based independent 
fiduciary firms, and a director of Capita Registrars (Guernsey) Limited. Previously he has worked at 
fiduciary companies in Guernsey and Bermuda including Rothschild, Bank of Bermuda and HSBC. 
Mr. Putron has a business economics degree from the University of Wales and is a member of the 
Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners.

MARK DE LA RUE (43) - NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

Mr. De La Rue is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accounts (ACCA) and a financial 
services professional with over 20 years experience in the accounting and fiduciary industries in 
Guernsey. He is managing director of Bartholomew Trust Company Limited and a director of Jupiter 
Trustees Limited, both of which are Guernsey based independent fiduciary firms.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their report and the financial statements of iEnergizer Limited (“the Company”) 
and its Subsidiaries listed in note 5 of the attached financial statements (collectively the “Group”), 
which covers the year from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing Business Process Outsourcing Services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The trading results for the year and the Group’s financial position at the end of the year are shown 
in the attached financial statements.

The Directors has recommended payment of a dividend of 8p per share (FY2010–11: 5.6p).

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

A review of the business and likely future developments of the Company are contained in the 
Chairman’s statement on page 3 and CEO’s review on page 4.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The Directors of the Company during the year are noted on page 7.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The director’s remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2012 was:

Remuneration £ Remuneration (US$)

Sara Latham 30,000 48,412

John Behar 30,000 48,412

Chris de Putron 3,333 5,319

Mark De La Rue 3,333 5,319

Total Director’s Remuneration 66,666 107,462

DIRECTORS SHARE OPTION

The share option in force at 31 March 2012 and held by current directors are as follows:

Options 
Granted Options Vested

Options 
remaining to be 

vested
Exercise Price

Sara Latham 10,000 10,000 — $1.74

Details of the share option are contained in note 26 to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The related party transactions are noted in note 27 to the financial statement.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s system of internal control and for 
reviewing its effectiveness. The system of internal control is designed to manage the risk of failure 
to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives. It cannot totally eliminate the risk of failure but will 
provide reasonable, although not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

GOING CONCERN

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will have 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, 
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ reports and consolidated financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group 
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year. In preparing those financial statements the 
Directors are required to:

•	 Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•	 Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•	 State whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•	 Prepare consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that the financial statements comply with the above requirements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and of the Group to enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 
2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the Group’s website.

Legislation in the Guernsey governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

To the best of our knowledge and belief:

•	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards;

•	 Give a true and fair view of the financial position and results of the Group; and
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•	 The financial statements include an analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by 
the Group. There has not been any material change in business risks and uncertainties as 
described in the Admission Document dated 27 August 2010.

AUDITORS

All of the current Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves 
aware of any information needed by the Company’s Auditors for the purposes of their audit and to 
establish that the Auditors are aware of that information. The Directors are not aware of any relevant 
audit information of which the Auditors are unaware.

By order of the Board

ANIL AGGARWAL

Director
14 August 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
The Directors recognise the importance of sound corporate governance and intend for the Company 
to comply with the main provisions of the QCA Guidelines and Guernsey regulations insofar as 
they are appropriate given the Company’s size and stage of development. The Company may take 
additional Corporate Governance measures beyond QCA guidelines and Guernsey regulations as 
may be appropriate considering Company’s operations from time to time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the proper management of the Company. The Board comprises of 
one Executive Director, Anil Aggarwal (CEO) and four Non-Executive Directors, Sara Latham 
(Chairman), John Behar, Chris de Putron and Mark De La Rue. The resume of the board members is 
as outlined on page 7. 

The Executive Director brings knowledge of the Business Process Outsourcing industry and a range 
of general business skills. The Non-Executive Directors form a number of committees to assist in the 
governance of the Company and details are below. 

All Directors have access to independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, if and 
when required.

SUB-COMMITTEES

The Board has appointed the three sub-committees outlined below. All of the sub-committees have 
met during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit committee comprises of John Behar as chairman and Sara Latham. The committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the financial performance of the Company is properly monitored and 
reported on and for meeting with the auditors and reviewing findings of the audit with the external 
auditor. It is authorised to seek any information it properly requires from any employee and may 
ask questions of any employee. It will meet the auditors once per year without any members of 
management being present and are also responsible for considering and making recommendations 
regarding the identity and remuneration of such auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration committee comprises of Sara Latham as chairman and John Behar. The committee 
will consider and recommend to the Board the framework for the remuneration of the executive 
directors of the Company and any other senior management. It will further consider and recommend 
to the Board the total individual package of each executive director including bonuses, incentive 
payments and share options or other share awards. In addition, subject to existing contractual 
obligations, it will review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and the 
Company’s shareholders and, for each such plan, will recommend whether awards are made and, if 



ANNUAL REPORT 2011–12

12

so, the overall amount of such awards, the individual awards to executive directors and performance 
targets to be used. No director will be involved in decisions concerning his own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination committee comprises Sara Latham as chairman and John Behar. The committee will 
consider the selection and re-appointment of Directors. It will identify and nominate candidates to all 
board vacancies and will regularly review the structure, size and composition of the board (including 
the skills, knowledge and experience) and will make recommendations to the Board with regard to 
any changes.

SHARE DEALING

The Company has adopted a share dealing code (based on the Model Code) and the Company will 
take all proper and reasonable steps to ensure compliance by Directors and relevant employees.

THE CITY CODE ON TAKEOVERS AND MERGERS

The Code applies to offers for all listed and unlisted public companies considered by the Panel resident 
in the UK, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man. The Panel will normally consider a company to 
be resident only if it is incorporated in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man 
and has its place of central management in one of those jurisdictions. Although the Company is 
incorporated in Guernsey and its place of management is in Guernsey, the Panel considers that 
the code does not apply to the Company. It is emphasised that although the Ordinary Shares will 
trade on AIM, the company will not be subject to takeover regulations in the UK. However, certain 
provisions analogous to pats of the Code in particular the making of mandatory offers have been 
incorporated into the Articles which are available on the Company website, www.ienergizer.com.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY RULES

As a company incorporated in Guernsey, Shareholders are not obliged to disclose their interests 
in the Company in the same way as shareholders of certain companies incorporated in the UK. In 
particular, the relevant provisions of chapter 5 of the DTR do not apply. While the Articles contain 
provisions requiring disclosure of voting rights in Ordinary Shares which are similar to the provisions 
of the DTR, this may not always ensure compliance with the requirements of Rule 17 of the AIM Rules. 
Furthermore, the Articles may be amended in the future by a special resolution of the Shareholders.

CONTROL BY SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDER

Mr Anil Aggarwal through private companies mainly Geophysical Substrata Ltd. (GSL) and EICR 
(Cyprus) Limited (EICR) owns a significant percentage of the Company. Mr Aggarwal could exercise 
significant influence over certain corporate governance matters requiring shareholder approval, 
including the election of directors and the approval of significant corporate transactions and other 
transactions requiring a majority vote.

The Company, Arden Partners (Broker & Nomad), GSL, EICR and Mr Anil Aggarwal have entered 
into a relationship agreement to regulate the arrangements between them. The relationship agreement 
applies for as long as GSL/EICR directly or indirectly holds in excess of thirty per cent of the issued 
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share capital of the Company and the Company’s shares remain admitted to trading on AIM. The 
relationship agreement includes provisions to ensure that:

i. the Board and its committees are able to carry on their business independently of the individual 
interests of EICR;

ii. the constitutional documents of the Company are not changed in such a way which would be 
inconsistent with the Relationship Agreement;

iii. all transactions between the Group and EICR (or its affiliates) are on a normal commercial 
basis and concluded at arm’s length;

iv. EICR shall not:

(i) exercise the voting rights attaching to its Ordinary Shares; or

(ii) procure that the voting rights attaching to its Ordinary Shares be exercised, so as (a) to 
appoint any person who is connected to EICR to the Board if, as a direct consequence 
of such appointment, the number of persons connected to EICR appointed to the Board 
would exceed the number of independent Directors appointed to the Board, unless such 
appointment(s) has been previously approved by the nomination committee of the Board 
constituted by a majority of independent Directors; or (b) to remove any independent 
Director from the Board unless such removal has previously been recommended by a 
majority of the independent Directors, excluding the independent Director in question; or 
(c) to cancel the Admission unless the cancellation has previously been recommended by 
a majority of the independent Directors; and

v. certain restrictions are put in place to prevent interference by the Shareholder with the business 
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS Notes As at
31 March 2012

As at
31 March 2011

Non-current
Goodwill 7 102,300,503 186,696
Other intangibles assets 8 35,941,234 213,197
Property, plant and equipment 9 4,014,833 748,085
Long term financial assets 10 719,322 117,407
Deferred tax assets 11 20,230,187 41,999

Non-current assets 163,206,079 1,307,384

Current
Trade and other receivables 12 25,799,898 9,966,669
Cash and cash equivalents 13 11,478,220 12,232,458
Short term financial assets 14 2,885,695 -
Current tax assets 114,090 27,626
Other current assets 15 1,928,467 1,979,979

Current assets 42,206,370 24,206,732

Total assets 205,412,449 25,514,116

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital 3,195,334 3,148,881
Share compensation reserve 63,986 63,986
Additional paid in capital 11,009,480 -
Merger reserve 16 (1,049,386) (1,049,386)
Retained earnings 19,201,520 16,797,935
Currency translation reserve (1,166,752) 42,470

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 31,254,182 19,003,886

Liabilities
Non-current

Long term borrowings 17 1,012,004 76,662
Employee benefit obligations 19 4,005,323 161,431
Other non-current liabilities 282,557 -
Deferred tax liabilities 11 13,120,619 -

Non-current liabilities 18,420,503 238,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTD.)
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at
31 March 2012

As at
31 March 2011

Current 
Trade and other payables 9,627,763 5,321,421
Employee benefit obligations 19 831,348 -
Current tax liabilities 575,515 2,811
Current portion of long term borrowings 17 425,034 97,969
Short term borrowings 17 134,500,000 -
Other current liabilities 20 9,778,104 849,936

Current liabilities 155,737,764 6,272,137

Total equity and liabilities 205,412,449 25,514,116

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements)

The Consolidated Financial Statements is being signed as of 14 August 2012, pursuant to resolution approved in 
the board meeting held on 14 August 2012.

ANIL AGGARWAL
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended  
31 March 2012

For the year ended  
31 March 2011

Revenue
Rendering of services 71,729,280 49,333,893
Other operating income 466,443 26,054

72,195,723 49,359,947
 
Cost and expenses

Cost of outsourced services 31,427,733 25,591,106
Employee benefits expense 14,331,576 4,933,542
Depreciation and amortisation 1,341,872 757,502
Other expenses 6,206,196 1,823,102

53,307,377 33,105,252

Operating profit 18,888,346 16,254,695
Finance income 21 95,986 31,455
Finance costs 22 (1,230,955) -

Profit before tax 17,753,377 16,286,150

Income tax expense 23 1,733,324 537,601
Profit for the year attributable to equity 
holders of the parent 16,020,053 15,748,549

Earnings per share
Basic 24 0.11 0.10
Diluted 0.11 0.10
Par value of each share in GBP 0.01 0.01

 (The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  
31 March 2012

For the year ended  
31 March 2011

Profit for the year 16,020,053 15,748,549
Exchange difference on translating foreign operations (1,166,752) 42,470
Income tax relating to components of other 
comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 
equity holders of the parent 14,853,301 15,791,019

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

  For the year ended  
 31 March 2012

For the year ended  
 31 March 2011

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 17,753,377 16,286,150
Adjustments

Depreciation and amortisation 1,341,872 757,502
Receivable written off/provided for - 81,162
Share based payments - 63,986
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,736 -
Trade receivables written-off 4,175 -
Foreign exchange loss 903,826
Finance income (95,986) (7,897)
Finance cost 1,230,955 -

21,145,955 17,180,903
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables (15,837,405) (5,499,070)
Other assets 37,999,010 42,654,872
Non-current liabilities, trade payables and other current 
liabilities

(21,930,934) 3,654,378

Cash generated from operations 21,376,626 57,991,083
Income taxes paid (8,314,652) (604,415)
Net cash generated from operating activities 13,061,974 57,386,668

Cash flow for investing activities
Payments for purchase of property plant and equipment (1,180,420) (515,880)
Interest received 95,986 7,897
Consideration towards business combination net of cash 
acquired

(150,100,000) (2,531,271)

Net cash used in investing activities (151,184,434) (3,039,254)
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  For the year ended  
 31 March 2012

For the year ended  
 31 March 2011

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds of share capital 11,055,933 149
Interest expense (1,230,955) -
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent (13,616,468) (87,000,000)
Proceeds of borrowings 135,762,407 -

Net cash used in financing activities 131,970,917 (86,999,851)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (6,151,543) (32,652,437)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,232,458 44,842,425
Cash acquired on acquisition of Aptara Inc. 6,606,527 -
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent (1,209,222) 42,470
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,478,220 12,232,458

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash in hand 52,832 4,699
Balances with banks in current account 10,744,899 11,573,519
Balances with banks in deposit account 680,489 654,240

11,478,220 12,232,458

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTD.)
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in United States Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. INTRODUCTION

iEnergizer Limited (the ‘Company’ or ‘iEnergizer’) was incorporated in Guernsey on 12 May 2010. 

iEnergizer Limited is a ‘Company limited by shares’ and is domiciled in Guernsey. The registered office of the 
Company is located at Mont Crevelt House, Bulwer Avenue, St. Sampson, Guernsey, GY2 4 LH. iEnergizer was 
listed on the Alternative Investment Market (‘AIM’) of London Stock Exchange on 14 September 2010.

iEnergizer through its subsidiaries iEnergizer Holdings Limited, iEnergizer Group FZ – LLC, iEnergizer IT 
Services Private Limited, iEnergizer BPO Limited, iEnergizer Aptara Limited and Aptara Inc. and subsidaries. 
(together the ‘Group’) is engaged in the business of call centre operations, providing business process outsourcing 
(BPO) and content delivery services, and back office services to their customers, who are primarily based in the 
United States of America and India, from its operating offices in Mauritius and India.

On February 07, 2012, iEnergizer Limited acquired Aptara Inc. and accordingly Aptara Inc. became 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of iEnergizer. Aptara Inc. provides content process outsourcing solutions, delivering 
a comprehensive offering for the transformation and management of content such as text, audio, video and 
graphic assets. Aptara provides services in the following areas: (i) Educational Publishing, (ii) Professional 
publishing, (iii) e-Learning and new media publishing, (iv) Content transformation technology (IT) services 
and (v) Legal solutions. Aptara customers include publishers, information aggregators, professional societies, 
universities, corporations and non for profit organisations located primarily in the United States, the United 
Kingdom and Australia.

2. GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by European Union.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
are summarised below. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The Group’s consolidated financial statements include financial statements of iEnergizer Limited, the parent 
company and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2012. Subsidiaries are all entities over which 
the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies. iEnergizer obtains and exercises control 
through more than half of the voting rights of the entity.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated. Where 
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for 
impairment losses from the Group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have 
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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3.2 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
This consolidated financial statement is presented in USD (‘United States Dollar’), which is also the Company’s 
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the 
financial statement of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The functional currency of each entity 
has been determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which each entity of the Group operates.

a. Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional 
currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the 
resultant foreign exchange gain or loss on re-measurement of monetary item or settlement of such transactions 
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

b. Group companies
In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a 
functional currency other than USD (the Group’s presentation currency) are translated into USD upon consolidation. 
The functional currencies of the entities in the Group have remained unchanged during the reporting period. 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into USD at the rate of exchange prevailing at the 
reporting date and their consolidated statements of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange 
rates where this is a reasonable approximation to actual rates during the year. The exchange differences arising 
on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the 
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the 
consolidated income statement. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity 
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into USD at the closing rate.

3.3 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue comprises revenue from call center operations and providing business process outsourcing (BPO) and 
also content process outsourcing solutions. These services are rendered through contractual arrangements entered 
into with customers by the Group companies. 

In respect of the Group’s call center operations and business process outsourcing, revenue is recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and 
sales taxes or duty. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine 
if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Rendering of services
Revenues earned from services billed at agreed hourly/daily charge out rates, are recognised as the services are 
performed with reference to time spent and agreed charge out rate.
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Revenues performed on fixed–price engagements are recognised either on percentage of completion basis or 
upon completion of services, depending upon whether the outcome of the contract can be reliably measured. 
Efforts expended, measured by way of time spent on the job to the total time budgeted, have been used to 
measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Provisions 
for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become 
probable based on the current contract estimates. Where the outcome of a transaction can be estimated 
reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognised in the income statement by reference to the stage 
of completion at the balance sheet date, provided that a right to consideration has been obtained through 
performance. When the Group cannot measure the outcome of a contract reliably, revenue is recognised only 
to the extent of contract costs incurred, to the extent that such contract costs are recoverable. Contract costs 
are recognised in the period in which they are incurred. No revenue is recognised where there are significant 
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or where the right to receive payment is contingent 
on events outside the control of the Group. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract 
revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognised based on services rendered to the customers, however not billed 
as of the balance sheet date as per the payment terms agreed with the customers. 

Finance and other income
Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in income 
statement, using the effective interest rate method. 

3.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Items of plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for 
long term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with 
specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred. 

Assets acquired under capital leases are capitalised as assets by the Group at the lower of the fair value of the 
leased property or the present value of the related lease payments or where applicable, the estimated fair value of 
such assets. Assets under capital leases and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term or the estimated useful life of the assets. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Asset Life of assets

Computers 2 to 7 years

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 1 to 7 years

Air conditioners and generators 10 years

Vehicles 4 to 7 years
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease period or the estimated useful 
lives of respective items of property, plant and equipment, whichever is lower.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Advances paid for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at the balance sheet date and the 
cost of property, plant and equipment not put to use before such date are disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

3.5 GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually 
identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The 
impairment analysis of goodwill is carried out annually at the respective reporting unit levels to evaluate whether 
events or changes have occurred that would suggest an impairment of carrying value. 

3.6 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a business combination is initially recorded at its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following 
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not 
capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the expenditure 
is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 
an intangible asset are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing 
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income statement 
when the asset is derecognised.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, these intangibles are subject 
to impairment testing annually. Amortisation has been included within ‘depreciation and amortisation’. The 
following useful lives are applied 

•	Software: 5 years 

•	Customer contracts and relationships: 0–7 years 

•	Trademark and patents (having indefinite life): Tested for impairment annually

•	Non-compete fees: 2 years
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3.7 LEASES
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at inception date whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as a lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges 
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that 
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement on a straight line 
basis over the lease term. Rent abatements and escalations are considered in the calculation of minimum lease 
payments in the Group’s capital lease testing and in determining straight line rent expense for operating leases. 

3.8 ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense recognised in the income statement comprise of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense 
is recognised in the consolidated income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected 
tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. 

Deferred income tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: 
(i)  the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and 
(ii)  Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is 

probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising upon the initial recognition 
of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and 
liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 
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A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Changes in 
deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except 
where they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case 
the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively. 

Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be 
realised. The provision for income taxes represents the tax payable for the period and the changes during the period 
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. In case of profits earned by certain subsidiaries, the Company does not record 
the deferred taxes on its investments in foreign subsidiaries because it deems them to be permanently reinvested.

3.9  POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, SHORT-TERM AND LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
AND EMPLOYEE COSTS

The Group provides post-employment benefits through defined contribution plans as well as defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plan 
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for 
contributions to recognised provident funds, approved superannuation schemes and other social securities which 
are defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the consolidated income statement 
when they are incurred. 

Defined benefit plans 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net 
obligation in respect of an approved gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, and certain other defined 
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine 
its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The 
discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high quality government bonds that have maturity dates 
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which 
the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using 
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is 
limited to the net total of any unrecognised past service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the 
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by 
employees is recognised in income statement on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits 
become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in income 
statement. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as an expense directly in the consolidated income statement. 

Short-term benefits 
Short-term benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 
is provided. 



ANNUAL REPORT 2011–12

30

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans 
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided 
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Compensated absences
Eligible employees are entitled to accumulate compensated absences up to prescribed limits in accordance with 
the Group’s policy and receive cash in lieu thereof. The Group measures the expected cost of accumulating 
compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such measurement is based on actuarial valuation as at 
the reporting date carried out by a qualified actuary.

3.10  IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS, GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Financial assets 
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is 
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events 
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

An impairment loss, in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. 

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. All impairment losses are 
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial 
asset recognised previously in equity is transferred to the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss is 
reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in the consolidated income statement. 

Non-financial assets 
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite 
lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use or its 
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for the 
purpose of impairment testing, allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated income statement. Impairment 
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losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of  
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on 
a pro-rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised 
in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or 
when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except for 
financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through income statement, which are measured 
initially at fair value. Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.

Financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets consist of investments in equity, trade receivables, certain other assets, cash and 
cash equivalents. 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging 
instruments are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition: 

•	loans and receivables

•	financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and expense is recognised 
in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the consolidated income statement are 
presented within ‘finance costs’, ‘finance income’ or ‘other financial items, as applicable.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-derivative 
financial instruments are measured as described below. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of cash 
flow comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 



ANNUAL REPORT 2011–12

32

Restricted deposits
Restricted deposits consist of deposits pledged with government authorities for the Group’s Indian subsidiaries 
and deposits restricted as to usage under lien to banks for guarantees, for bank overdraft facility and certain 
letter of credit given by the Company.

Others
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, 
less any impairment losses. 

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure. The Group does not 
designate such instruments as effective hedge.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are recognised in the consolidate income 
statement when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes 
therein are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments. 
Payable and borrowings are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
effective interest rate method. They are included in the consolidated statement of financial position line items 
‘long-term liabilities’ and ‘trade and other payables’.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the 
instrument. All interest related charges is recognised as an expense in “finance cost” in the income statement.

Trade payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less 
settlement payments.

Dividend distributions to shareholders are included in ‘other current liabilities’ when the dividends are approved 
by the shareholders’ meeting.

3.12 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of past events will probably lead to an outflow of 
economic resources from the Group and they can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still 
be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has resulted 
from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most 
reliable evidence available at the balance sheet date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the 
present obligation.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations is considered 
improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognised 
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the 
obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However this asset may not exceed the amount of the related 
provisions. All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are 
considered contingent assets.

From time to time, Group entities are subject to ordinary routine litigation incidental to its normal business operations. 
Management believes that the outcome of these litigation matters will not have a material effect on the Group’s 
results of operations, financial position or cash flows. No amounts have been paid or accrued toward these 
litigation matters as management believes any unfavourable outcome on any such litigation matters to be remote.

3.13 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred 
by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any 
asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless 
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. 
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values. 

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of 
the sum of a) fair value of consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest 
in  the  acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the 
acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum 
calculated above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

For common control transactions, not covered under IFRS 3 (revised), the Group applies pooling of interest 
method. Under a pooling of interests-type method, the acquirer accounts for the combination as follows:

•	 The assets and liabilities of the acquiree are recorded at book value not fair value (although adjustments should 
be recorded to achieve uniform accounting policies); 

•	 Intangible assets and contingent liabilities are recognised only to the extent that they were recognised by the 
acquiree in accordance with applicable IFRS (in particular IAS 38); 

•	 No goodwill is recorded. The difference between the acquirer’s cost of investment and the acquiree’s equity is 
presented as a separate reserve within equity on consolidation; 

•	 Any minority interest is measured as a proportionate share of the book values of the related assets and 
liabilities (as adjusted to achieve uniform accounting policies); 

•	Any expenses of the combination are written off immediately in the income statement;

•	 Comparative amounts are restated as if the combination had taken place at the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period presented.

3.14 EQUITY
Share capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and stock options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of 
any tax effects.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premium received on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs 
associated with the issue of shares is deducted from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.
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Foreign currency translation differences are included in the currency translation reserve.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period earnings, as disclosed in the income statement.

The balance on the merger reserve represents excess of the fair value of the consideration paid over the book 
value of net assets acquired in a common control transaction accounted for using pooling of interest method.

3.15 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
The Group operates equity-settled share based plans for one of its directors and a consultant. Where persons 
are rewarded using share based payments, the fair values of services rendered by director and others are 
determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted as the fair value of the 
services received cannot be reliably measured. This fair value is calculated using the Black Scholes model at 
the respective measurement date. In the case of employees and others providing services, the fair value is 
measured at the grant date. The fair value excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions. All share-based 
remuneration is recognised as an expense in consolidated income statement with a corresponding credit to share 
compensation reserve.

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on 
the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are 
included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are 
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of share options expected to vest differs from 
previous estimates and any impact of the change is recorded in the year in which that change occurs.  

3.16 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial information requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these 
judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, 
estimates and assumptions which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 
financial information:

Determination of functional currency of individual entities
Following the guidance in IAS 21 “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates” the functional currency 
of each individual entity is determined to be the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
entity operates. The management reckons that each of the individual entity’s functional currency reflects the 
transactions, events and conditions under which the entity conducts its business.

Business combinations
Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair values of the various elements of a business 
combination (see note 3.13). Particularly, the identification of intangible assets is dependent on the outcome of 
many variables that affect future profitability.
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Goodwill impairment review
In assessing goodwill impairment, management makes judgment of identifying the cash-generating units (CGU) 
to which the goodwill pertains. Management then estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or based 
on expected future cash flows. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the value-in-use 
calculations. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination 
of a suitable growth and discount rate (see note 7).

Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the 
Group’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. In addition, significant 
judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax 
jurisdictions

Post-employment benefits
The cost of defined employee benefit obligations and the present value of these obligations are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates and attrition rates. Due 
to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation 
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of high quality government 
bonds denominated in the respective currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated maturities 
corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country. Future salary increases 
are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries and expected future salary increases for 
the respective entities. Attrition rate is based on expected future attrition rate for the respective entities.

Useful lives of various assets
Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of 
the assets to the Group. The carrying amounts are analysed in notes 8 and 9. Actual results, however, may vary 
due to technical obsolescence, particularly relating to internally generated intangibles and software.

Impairment of trade receivables
As at each reporting date, management makes an estimate of the bad and doubtful trade receivables and 
records a loss for impairment against the receivables for amounts determined. Though there is a concentration 
of credit with respect to top customers of the Group, management doesn’t consider the risk arising from this 
concentration to be significant considering the credit worthiness of customers. The impairment loss is based solely 
on an estimate made by management with respect to the recoverability of past due trade receivable. 

4. STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND APPLIED

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations have been issued, but are not effective 
for these Consolidated Financial Statements and have not been early adopted by the Group: 
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Effective from 1 January 2015)
The IASB aims to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement in its entirety by the end 
of 2011, with the replacement standard to be effective for annual period’s beginning 1 January 2015. IFRS 9 is 
the first part of Phase 1 of this project. The main phases are: 

 Phase 1 : Classification and Measurement
 Phase 2 : Impairment methodology
 Phase 3 : Hedge accounting

In addition, a separate project is dealing with de-recognition. Management has yet to assess the impact that this 
amendment is likely to have on the financial statements of the Group. However, they do not expect to implement 
the amendments until all chapters of the IAS 39 replacement have been published and they can comprehensively 
assess the impact of all changes.

Amendment (issued 28 October 2010) (Effective from 1 January 2015)
In October 2010, the IASB amended IFRS 9 to incorporate requirements for classifying and measuring financial 
liabilities and derecognising financial assets and financial liabilities. Most of IAS 39’s requirements have been 
carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. Changes have however been made to address issues related to own credit 
risk where an entity takes the option to measure financial liabilities at fair value.

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements (Issued May 2011) (Effective from 1 January 2013)
IFRS 10 introduces a revised definition of control together with accompanying guidance on how to apply it. In 
contrast to IAS 27 and SIC-12, which resulted in different criteria for determining control being applied to special 
purpose vehicles, IFRS 10’s requirements will apply to all types of potential subsidiaries.

Though the standard is applicable to the Group, the management is yet to assess the impact of the new standard 
on the consolidated financial statements.  

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Issued May 2011) (Effective from 1 January 2013)
The new standard integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, 
associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The new standard is intended to provide transparency about 
the risks to which a reporting entity is exposed from its involvement with structured entities.

Consequential amendments to IAS 27 and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (IAS 28)
IAS 27 now only deals with separate financial statements. IAS 28 brings investments in joint ventures into its 
scope. However, IAS 28’s equity accounting methodology remains unchanged.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Issued May 2011) (Effective from 1 January 2013)
The new IFRS does not affect which items are required to be ‘fair-valued’, but specifies how an entity should 
measure fair value and disclose fair value information. IFRS 13 has been developed to remedy this problem, by 
establishing a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements, clarifying the definition of fair value and 
related guidance and enhancing disclosures about fair value measurements (new disclosures increase transparency 
about fair value measurements, including the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value).
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Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Issued June 2011) (Effective from  
1 July 2012)
The IAS 1 Amendments require an entity to group items presented in other comprehensive income into those that, 
in accordance with other IFRSs: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) will be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The Group’s management expects this will change 
the current presentation of items in other comprehensive income; however, it will not affect the measurement or 
recognition of such items.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Issued June 2011) (Effective from 1 January 2013)
The IAS 19 Amendments include a number of targeted improvements throughout the Standard. The main changes 
relate to defined benefit plans. They:

•	 eliminate the ‘corridor method’, requiring entities to recognise all actuarial gains and losses arising in the 
reporting period

•	streamline the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities

•	 enhance the disclosure requirements, including information about the characteristics of defined benefit plans 
and the risks that entities are exposed to through participation in them.

The amended version of IAS 19 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The Group’s 
management has yet to assess the impact of this revised standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Details of the entities, which as of 31 March 2012 form part of the Group and are consolidated under iEnergizer 
are as follows:

Name of the entity Holding 
company

Country of 
incorporation

Effective group 
shareholding (%)  

as of 31 March 2012
iEnergizer Holdings Limited (‘IHL’) iEnergizer Mauritius 100

iEnergizer Group FZ – LLC (‘IEG’) iEnergizer Dubai 100

iEnergizer IT Services Private Limited (‘IITS’) IHL India 100

iEnergizer Aptara Limited* iEnergizer Guernsey 100

iEnergizer BPO Limited IHL Mauritius 100

Aptara Inc. iEnergizer USA 100

Techbooks International Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Techbooks Electronic Services Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Global Content Transformation Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Maximize Learning Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Aptara Learning Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Aptara New Media Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100

Aptara Technologies Private Limited Aptara Inc. India 100
* Dormant company as of 31 March 2012
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6. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On February 7, 2012 (“effective time”), iEnergizer Limited (company registered in Guernsey) acquired the 
Company (‘Aptara, Inc.’) at an agreed purchase consideration of USD 150,100,000, paid in cash. The 
acquisition was made through a special purpose entity, iEnergizer-Aptara Merger Sub, Inc. (set up in United 
States of America and a wholly owned subsidiary of iEnergizer Limited). As part of the acquisition, the special 
purpose entity merged into Aptara Inc., resulting in the Company becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
iEnergizer Limited. The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method as prescribed in IFRS 3 
(revised). Accordingly, the financial results for the post acquisition period have been included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group. Aptara is a market leader in end to end outsourced multi-channel content 
production and digital media solutions. The acquisition extends iEnergizer’s capabilities in the content production 
and digital media solution markets, while enlarging its customer base. 

Following assets and liabilities are acquired in the business combination and recorded at their fair values:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair value of assets

Purchase consideration paid in cash for the acquisition 150,100,000

Amount assigned to fair value of intangibles

Customer related intangibles* 23,700,000

Trademarks 12,000,000

Patents 100,000

35,800,000

Assets acquired

Property and equipment 2,857,543

Other intangibles  485,414

Deferred tax asset 20,003,908

Restricted cash 76,739

Total non-current assets 23,423,604

Cash and cash equivalents 4,348,933

Restricted cash 2,180,855

Trade receivables 12,713,544

Other receivables 8,717,656

Total current assets 27,960,988

Total assets acquired 87,184,592
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair value of assets

Liabilities assumed

Deferred tax liabilities on acquired intangibles 9,150,464

Deferred tax liabilities – others 3,889,642

Total non-current liabilities 13,040,106

Current liabilities 26,179,308

Total current liabilities 26,179,308

Total liabilities acquired 39,219,414

Net assets acquired 47,965,178

Goodwill 102,134,822

* Expected life 3–7 years

Acquisition related costs amounting to USD 930,710 are not included as part of consideration transferred and 
has been recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement as part of other expenses. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill of USD 102,134,822 is primarily related to growth expectations, expected future profitability, Aptara 
Inc.’s work force and expected cost synergies. Goodwill has been allocated to content delivery unit and is not 
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Aptara Inc.’s contribution to the group result
Aptara Inc. did not have any financial information in IFRS prior to the acquisition date, hence disclosure about  
revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the current reporting year assuming the business combination 
occurred as of the beginning of reporting year could not be given.

Aptara earned revenue of USD 13,004,436 and incurred a loss before tax of USD 294,118 (after considering 
amortisation charge, net loss on the foreign exchange transactions and derivative contracts and finance cost 
for the period of USD 764,642, USD 903,826 and USD 1,230,955 respectively) for the period beginning from 
7 February 2012 to 31 March 2012.
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7. GOODWILL

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

Particulars Amount 
Balance as at 01 April 2010 -

Acquired through business combination 191,117

Impairment loss recognised -

Translation adjustment (4,421)

Balance as at 31 March 2011 186,696

Particulars Amount 

Balance as at 01 April 2011 186,696

Acquired through business combination 102,134,822

Impairment loss recognised -

Translation adjustment (21,015)

Balance as at 31 March 2012 102,300,503

For the purpose of annual impairment testing goodwill is allocated to the following CGU, which is expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the business combinations in which the goodwill arises.

Particulars Amount

Real time processing – India business unit 165,681

Content delivery – USA business unit 102,134,822

Goodwill allocation at year end 102,300,503

The recoverable amounts of the CGU was determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering a detailed 
three to five year forecast, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows for the unit’s remaining useful 
lives using the growth rates stated below. 

Particulars Growth rate
31 March 2012

Discount rate
31 March 2012

India business unit 15.00% 15.60%

USA business unit 14.00% 16.50%

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units is its value in use which is the present value of the future cash 
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating units.  Management used the following key assumptions 
to estimate its cash flow projection for the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts:

 a) Estimated cash flows for 5–7 years based on internal management budgets.
 b)  Terminal value arrived by extrapolating last forecasted year cash flows to perpetuity, using a constant 

long-term growth rate of 3% to 5%. This long-term growth rate takes into consideration external 
macroeconomic sources of data. Such long-term growth rate considered does not exceed that of the 
relevant business and industry sector.
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 c)  The pre-tax discount rates used are based on the weighted average cost of capital of the relevant 
underlying cash-generating unit. 

These assumptions are based on past experience and are consistent with market information. In cases where cash 
flows have been projected to arise for more than 5 years, the management believes that the business environment 
and stage in life cycle of relevant businesses justifies the use of such projections.

8. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Intangible assets comprises of computer software, customer contracts.

Particulars Customer 
contracts

Computer 
software Total

Cost

Balance as at 01 April 2010 - - -

Acquired under business combination 213,744 168,042 381,786

Other additions 276,565  48,494 325,059

Translation adjustment  (4,946) (3,845) (8,791)

Balance as at 31 March 2011 485,363  212,691 698,054

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01 April 2010 - - -

Amortisation  445,285  37,116 482,401

Translation adjustment 2,014 442 2,456

Balance as at 31 March 2011 447,299  37,558 484,857

Net carrying value  38,064  175,133 213,197
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8. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTD.)

The Intangible assets comprises of computer software, customer contracts.

Particulars Customer 
Contracts

Computer 
software Patent Trade mark

Intangibles 
under 

development
Total

Cost

Balance as at  
01 April 2011 485,363 212,691 - - - 698,054

Acquired under 
business combination 23,700,000 215,300 100,000 12,000,000 270,114 36,285,414

Additions - 306,576 - - - 306,576

Disposals (Net) - - - - - -

Translation adjustment (23,517) (22,217) - - - (45,734)

Balance as at  
31 March 2012 24,161,846 712,350 100,000 12,000,000 270,114 37,244,310

Accumulated 
amortization

Balance as at  
01 April 2011 447,299 37,558 - - - 484,857

Amortisation for the 
year 654,516 185,337 - - - 839,853

Translation adjustment (20,157) (1,478) - - - (21,634)

Balance as at  
31 March 2012 1,081,658 221,418 - - - 1,303,076

Net carrying value  
as at 31 March 2012 23,080,188 490,932 100,000 12,000,000 270,114 35,941,234
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment comprise of the following:

Particulars Computer
Office 

equipment

Furniture 
and 

fixtures

Air 
conditioner 

and 
generator

Vehicles
Leasehold 

improvement

Capital 
work in 
progress

Total

Cost

Balance as at  
01 April 2010

- - - - - - - -

Additions

Acquired 
under business 
combination

247,654 4,393 164,153 103,571 38,009 258,917 - 816,697

Other additions 209,642 1,585 844 2,466 - - 11,298 225,835

Translation 
adjustment

(3,124) (89) (3,791) (2,339) (882) (5,998) 172 (16,051)

Balance as  
at 31 March 
2011

454,172 5,889 161,206 103,698 37,127 252,919 11,470 1,026,481

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Balance at  
01 April 2010

- - - - - - - -

Depreciation  
for the year

142,357 2,534 67,459 10,100 6,801 45,850 - 275,101

Translation 
adjustment

1,703 30 807 121 81 553 - 3,295

Balance as  
at 31 March 
2011

144,060 2,564 68,266 10,221 6,882 46,403 - 278,396

Net carrying  
value as at 
31 March 2011

310,112 3,325 92,940 93,477 30,245 206,516 11,470 748,085
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10. LONG TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
Security deposits 641,061  116,830 
Restricted deposits 77,284 577
Others 977 -

719,322 117,407 

Security deposits are interest free unsecured deposits placed with owners of the property leased to the Group for 
operations in operating centres. The above security deposits have been discounted to arrive at their fair values at 
initial recognition using market interest rates applicable in India which approximates 8% per annum. These security 
deposits have maturity terms of 5 years. The management estimates the fair value of these deposits to be not 
materially different from the amounts recognised in the financial statements at amortised cost at each reporting date.

Restricted cash represents deposits that have been pledged with banks against guarantees issued to tax and other 
local authorities as security to meet contractual obligations towards other parties along with accrued interest on 
these deposits which is also inaccessible for use by the Group.

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Particulars 31 March 
2011

Acquired 
in business 

combination

Recognised in 
consolidated 

statement 
of other 

comprehensive  
income

Recognised 
in  

consolidated 
income 

statement

31 March 
2012

Deferred tax assets on account of
Property, plant and equipment 
and intangibles 14,661 860,397 14,274 (112,065) 777,266

Employee benefits 26,565 465,307 3,305 22,790 517,968
Net operating losses - 13,134,641 - 641,827 13,776,468
Accruals for expenses - 1,125,658 13,885 (15,101) 1,124,442
Unrealised (loss) on derivatives - 2,069,699 22,588 (744,140) 1,348,148
Others 773 1,760,049 10,911 (20,566) 1,751,168
Minimum alternate tax - 588,157 56,768 289,802 934,727

41,999 20,003,908 121,731 62,547 20,230,187
Deferred tax liabilities on 
account of
Intangibles acquired during  
business combination - (9,150,464) - 241,000 (8,909,464)

Undistributed earnings of the 
subsidiaries - (3,889,642) (37,598) (283,915) (4,211,155)

- (13,040,106) (37,598) (42,915) (13,120,619)
Total 41,999 6,963,802 84,133 19,632 7,109,568
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Gross value 26,845,254 10,012,025

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts (45,356) (45,356)

Total 26,799,898 9,966,669

The trade receivables have been recorded at their respective carrying amounts and are not considered to be 
materially different from their fair values as these are expected to realise within a short period from the reporting 
dates. All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. No trade 
receivables were found to be impaired and accordingly no provision for credit losses has been recorded. 

Top five customers for the year ended 31 March 2012 are USD 11,820,842 being 45.82% (31 March 2011 
USD 4,435,616 being 44.50%) of net trade receivables. 

The analysis of provision for bad and doubtful debts is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Balance as at 31 March 2011  45,356 -

Accrual during the year -  45,356 

Balance as at 31 March 2012 45,356 45,356 

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Cash in hand 52,832 4,699 

Cash in current accounts 10,744,899 11,573,519 

Cash in deposit accounts 680,489 654,240 

  11,478,220 12,232,458 

14. SHORT TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Security deposits 126,966 -

Restricted deposits 2,673,944 -

Short term investments  
(carried at fair value through profit or loss) 84,785 -

2,885,695 - 

Short term investments comprise of investment through banks in highly liquid interest bearing deposits denominated 
in various currency units which are traded in the market. The changes in the interest rate of these deposits are 
reflected through the changes in their market values. The Group may redeem these investments at any time at the 
prevailing market rates.
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15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Due from parent company - 1,715,018

Prepayments 936,360 95,205

Unbilled revenue 236,616 116,877

Others 755,492 52,879

1,928,468 1,979,979

16. MERGER RESERVE

On 15 June 2010, the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with EICR Limited. As per the 
agreement, EICR Limited has transferred 2,099,346 shares of 1 USD each in iEnergizer Holdings Limited in 
exchange for the issue by the Company of 150,000,000 ordinary shares to EICR Limited. Consequent to this 
exchange, iEnergizer Holdings Limited became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the Company 
became the wholly owned subsidiary of EICR Limited which was diluted to 78.71 percent upon listing of the 
Company on AIM.

In the absence of explicit guidance available under IFRS on accounting of acquisition of common control entities, 
the Group chose to account for this transaction using “Pooling of interest method”. As per the pooling of interest 
method, the consolidated financial statements of year ended 31 March 2012 were prepared assuming that 
transfer of shares was completed on the first day of the period presented i.e. 01 April 2009. The share capital 
of iEnergizer Limited, Guernsey as at 1 April 2009 was determined as the equity issued to effect the transaction, 
equal to the net asset value of Mauritius as of 1 April 2010.

The difference between equity of iEnergizer Holdings Limited (the acquirer) and the net asset value of iEnergizer 
Holdings Limited (the acquiree in this case) as at 01 April 2009 was adjusted in equity under the heading 
‘merger reserve’ as under: 

Particulars Amount (US $)

Equity of iEnergizer Holdings Limited 2,099,346

Net asset value of iEnergizer Holdings Limited:

Equity 2,099,346

Retained earnings 1,049,386

3,148,732

Difference adjusted through merger reserve (1,049,386)
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17. LONG TERM BORROWINGS/SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Non-current portion of borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Finance lease obligation 1,429,603 115,979

Term loan from others 7,435 58,652

Total long-term borrowings 1,437,038 174,631

Less: Current portion of borrowings 

Finance lease obligation 417,599 47,696

Term loan from others 7,435 50,273

425,034 97,969

  1,012,004 76,662

Short term borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Loan from parent company 20,000,000 -

Loan from others# 114,500,000 -

  134,500,000 -

# Loan from others consists of loan received from a company named Gynia Holdings Ltd (a non-related 
company) repayable on demand and carrying an interest rate of 5.25% p.a. No assets have been pledged as 
security for this loan.

18. LEASES

The Group’s financial lease payments are due on computers (including embedded software) taken on lease for 
operating activities. The net carrying value of computers and plant and machinery taken on lease as at 31 March 
2012 is USD 947,677 (31 March 2011: 64,467). 

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Computers   723,499      51,725 

Intangibles -      12,742 

Plant and machinery 224,178 -

    947,677      64,467 
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The minimum lease rent payable for the assets taken on finance leases (included under current and non-current 
borrowings) are as under:

Payments falling due Future minimum lease 
payments outstanding Interest Implicit Present value of future 

lease payments
  31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011
31 March 

2012
31 March 

2011

Within 1 year 593,922 50,209 176,323 2,513 417,599 47,696

Later than 1 year but 
less than 5 years 1,133,678 80,535 121,674 12,252 1,012,004 68,283

More than 5 years - - - - - -

The Group’s approximate future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are:

Payments falling due Future minimum lease  
payments outstanding

  31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Within 1 year 771,045 -

Later than 1 year but less than 5 years 1,269,062 -   

More than 5 years 432,702   -

The Group’s operating lease payments are cancellable as well as non-cancellable and are due on premises taken 
on lease for operating activities. 

Lease expense for premises taken on lease, recognised as expense in the consolidated income statement for 
the year ended 31 March 2012 is USD 935,896 (31 March 2011: USD 399,122). There were no sublease 
payments or contingent rent payments. Assets held under lease agreements are used exclusively by the Group 
and sublease of premises are not allowed as a part of the agreements. 

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the 
Group. Employee benefit obligations include the components as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Provision for gratuity 1,667,529 77,051

Provision for compensated absences 1,949,837 84,380 

Accrued Pension Liability 1,219,305 -

  4,836,671 161,431

Gratuity
The Group provides gratuity benefit to its employees working in India. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan 
that, at retirement or termination of employment, provides eligible employees with a lump sum payment, which 
is a function of the last drawn salary and completed years of service. 
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Compensated absences
The Group has accumulating compensated absences policy. The Group measures the expected cost of accumulating 
compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that 
has accumulated at the statement of financial position.

Accrued pension
The Group sponsors a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan (the “DB Plan”) covering all full-time 
employees of one of its subsidiaries meeting specified entry-age requirements. Pension benefits were based upon 
a formula contained in the DB Plan documents that takes into consideration years of service. The Company’s 
funding policy is based on actuarial recommended contribution. The actuarial cost method utilised to calculate 
the present value of benefit obligations is the projected unit credit cost method. The Company is using the corridor 
approach, which suggests a minimum amount of actuarial gains/losses to be amortised. The DB Plan assets are 
held by a bank, as trustee, principally in the form of mutual fund units, money market securities, corporate bonds, 
and U.S. government securities. The DB Plan has no liabilities. 

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using projected unit credit 
method. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation with respect to gratuity, accrued pension 
liability and compensated absences are as follows:

31 March 2012

Particulars Gratuity Compensated 
absences

Accrued  
Pension

Change in benefit obligation

Opening value of obligation 77,051 84,380 -

Assumed under business combination 1,582,179 1,263,264 2,798,657

Interest cost 5,983 6,552 -

Service cost 232,732 299,341 25,520

Benefits paid (1,550) (3,722) -

Actuarial loss gain (23,561) (59,862) -

Translation adjustment (9,008) (9,824) -

Defined benefit obligation at the year end 1,863,826 1,580,129 2,824,177

Fair Value of planned assets
(Assumed under business combination) 196,297 - 1,604,872
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Particulars Gratuity Compensated 
absences

Accrued  
Pension

Net benefit obligation 1,667,529 1,580,129 1,219,305

Amounts recognised in consolidated 
income statement

Current service cost 232,732 299,341 25,520

Interest cost 5,983 6,552 

Actuarial gain recognised in the year (23,561) (59,862)

Expense recognised in consolidated 
income statement 215,154  246,031 25,520

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Current portion of obligation as at the end of the year 831,348 -

Non-current portion of obligation as at the end of the year 4,005,323 161,431

Total 4,836,671 161,431 

31 March 2011

Particulars Gratuity Compensated 
absences

Reconciliation of unfunded status

Change in benefit obligation

Opening value of obligation - -

Assumed under business combination 47,552  43,547 

Interest cost  3,446 3,156 

Service cost 33,427  63,416 

Benefits paid (879) (273)

Actuarial loss gain (6,843) (25,948)

Translation adjustment  348 482 

Defined benefit obligation at the year end 77,051  84,380 

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement

Current service cost 33,427  63,416 

Interest cost  3,446 3,156 

Actuarial gain recognised in the year (6,843) (25,948)

Expense recognised in consolidated income statement 30,030  40,624

Enterprises best estimate of contribution during next year 648,951 802,758
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Discount rate assumptions and expected rate of increase in compensation levels used in calculation of gratuity 
obligation are as follows

  31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Discount rate 8.5% 8.00%

Expected rate of increase in compensation levels 8% – 8.5% 7.00%

Defined contribution plans
Apart from being covered under the Gratuity Plan described earlier, employees of the Group also participate in 
a Provident Fund Plan in India. Contributions paid or payable are recognised as expense in the period in which 
they are due. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group contributed USD 258,698 (31 March 2011: 
63,573) towards the Provident Fund Plan in India.

20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Employee dues 3,232,728 650,299 

Statutory dues payable 576,860  199,637 

Unearned revenue 1,556,623  - 

Advance from customers 1,391,412 -

Derivative financial instruments 2,349,616 -

Others 670,865 -

  9,778,104 849,936

21. FINANCE INCOME

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Interest income on deposit accounts 87,448 23,558 

Interest on security deposit on operating lease 8,538 7,897 

  95,986 31,455 

22. FINANCE COST

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Interest on borrowings 1,171,318 -

Interest on finance lease 59,637 -

  1,230,955 -

23. INCOME TAXES

Income tax is based on tax rate applicable on profit or loss in various jurisdictions in which the Group operates. 
The effective tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the country concerned as shown in the reconciliation 
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below have been computed by multiplying the accounting profit with effective tax rate in each jurisdiction in 
which the Group operates. The entities at Guernsey and Dubai are zero tax entities.

Tax expense reported in the Income Statement and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Current tax expense 1,752,956 579,600 

Deferred tax credit (19,632) (41,999)

Net tax expense 1,733,324 537,601

The relationship between the expected tax expense based on the domestic tax rates for each of the legal entities 
within the Group and the reported tax expense in profit or loss is reconciled as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Accounting profit for the year before tax 17,753,377 16,286,150

Effective tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the 
country concerned 964,681 541,749

Deferred tax on undistributed earnings 283,915 -

Dividend distribution tax 190,415 -

Expenses disallowed or income not taxable 247,074 (6,571)

Others 47,239  2,423

Tax expense 1,733,324  537,601

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profits attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 is as follows:

Basic earnings per share

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Profit attributable to shareholders 16,020,053 15,748,549

Weighted average numbers shares outstanding 150,887,049 150,010,000

Basic earnings per share (USD) 0.11 0.10
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Diluted earnings per share

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Profit attributable to shareholders 16,020,053 15,748,549

Potential ordinary shares* 66,076 39,283

Weighted average numbers shares outstanding 150,953,125 150,049,283

Diluted earnings per share (USD) 0.11 0.10

* Shares to be issued under share options granted

25. EQUITY

The share capital of iEnergizer consists only of fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of GBP 0.01 per share 
(previous year GBP 0.01 per share). All shares represent one vote at the shareholders’ meeting of iEnergizer 
Limited and are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital. The total number of shares 
issued and fully paid up of the company as on each reporting date is summarised as follows: 

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Opening number of shares 150,010,000 150,010,000

Number of shares issued during the year 3,000,000 -

Closing number of shares 153,010,000 150,010,000

26. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

On 27 August 2010, the Company entered into an option agreement with Arden Partners and Sara Latham. 
Under agreement with Arden Partners, they were granted the right to subscribe at the Placing Price for 159,654 
Ordinary Shares (equivalent to 0.5 per cent. in number of the number of Placing Shares). Such right may be 
exercised at any time during the period starting on the date of Admission and ending on the third anniversary 
of Admission. Under agreement with Sara Latham, Ms. Latham was granted the right to subscribe at the placing 
price for 10,000 ordinary shares. Such right may be exercised between the first anniversary of admission and 
the fifth anniversary of admission, after which it will lapse to the extent it, has not been exercised. 

Information on share option granted during the year:

Particulars Number of 
options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life

Balance as at 01 April 2011 169,654 1.74 4.34 

Granted during the year - - -

Forfeited during the year - - -

Exercised during the year - - -

Balance at end of the year 169,654 1.74 3.33 

Exercisable as at 31 March 2012 169,654 1.74 3.33 
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Particulars Number of 
options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life

Balance as at 01 April 2010 - - -

Granted during the year 169,654 1.74 4.93 

Forfeited during the year - - -

Exercised during the year - - -

Balance at end of the year 169,654 1.74 4.34 

Exercisable as at 31 March 2011 169,654 1.74 4.34 

These equity-settled share based payments are made on the basis of fair values of services rendered are 
determined by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised using 
the Black Scholes model at the grant date. The fair value is measured at the grant date. The fair value excludes the 
impact of non-market vesting conditions. All share-based remuneration is recognised as an expense, allocated 
by the management to other expenses in statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding credit to share 
compensation reserve.

Volatility to shares has been determined considering volatility in comparable companies. The fair value of option 
using Black Scholes model is USD 0.40 for Arden Partners and USD 0.49 for Sara Latham. The inputs to the 
Black Scholes model for warrants that have been granted during the reporting year are summarised as follows:

Issue date 27 August 2010

Fair value shares at grant date (USD) 1.83

Exercise price (USD) 1.74 

Expected volatility 33.00%

Vesting period (years) 1 year 

Dividend yield -

Risk-free interest rate 1.50%
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The related parties for each of the entities in the Group have been summarised in the table below: 

Nature of the relationship Related Party’s Name

I. Ultimate controlling Mr. Anil Aggarwal

II. Entities directly or indirectly through 
one or more intermediaries, control, are 
controlled by, or are under common control 
with, the reported enterprises

EICR Limited (Parent of iEnergizer Limited)
Barker Shoes Limited (Under common control)

III. Key management personnel and 
significant shareholders:

Mr.  Anil Aggarwal (Ultimate Shareholder, EICR Limited)
Mr.  John Behar (Director, iEnergizer Limited)
Ms. Sara Latham (Director, iEnergizer Limited)
Mr.  Chris de Putron (Director, iEnergizer Limited)
Mr. Mark De La Rue (Director, iEnergizer Limited)

Disclosure of transactions between the Group and related parties and the outstanding balances is as under:

Transactions with parent company

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Transactions during the year

Dividend paid 10,717,522 -

Repayment of loan 155,299 -

Payment received 1,559,719 -

Loan received 20,000,000 -

Interest paid 295,890 -

Share issued for 100% shares of iEnergizer Holdings Limited, Mauritius - 165,600,000

Interest free demand loan given - 1,500,149

Balances at the end of 31 March 2012

Interest payable 295,890 -

Demand loan facility 20,000,000 1,495,734

Expenses recoverable - 219,284
Above payables from related parties bears a interest rate of 10% and are repayable on demand. Hence, the 
management is of the view that fair values of such receivables and payable closely approximates their carrying values. 

Entity exercising significant influence

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Transactions during the year

Reimbursement of expenses to Barker Shoes Limited - 3,936
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Transactions with key managerial personnel and their relative

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Transactions during the year

Short term employee benefits 

Remuneration paid to directors

Sara Latham 48,412 28,611

John Behar 48,412 28,611

Chris de Putron 5,319 -

Mark De La Rue 5,319 -

Balances at the end of 31 March 2012

Total remuneration payable to key managerial personnel 7,995 8,016

Key management personnel also participate in post-employment benefit plans and other long term benefits 
provided by the Group. The amounts in respect of these towards the key management personnel cannot 
be segregated as these are based on actuarial valuation for all employees of the Group. During the year ended 
31 March 2012 no key management personnel has exercised options granted to them.

28. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses include:

Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Expenses incurred on acquisition of Aptara Inc. 930,710 -

Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss  
(other than on derivative contracts) 384,825 -

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

Management currently identifies the Group’s three service lines real time processing, back office services and 
content delivery as operating segments on the basis of operations. These operating segments are monitored and 
strategic decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results. 

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources 
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by reportable segments. The Group’s reportable 
segments are as follows:

 1. Real time processing
 2. Back office services
 3. Content delivery
 4. Others
The measurement of each segment’s revenues, expenses and assets is consistent with the accounting policies that 
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. In addition, two minor operating segments, for 
which the quantitative thresholds have not been met, are currently combined below under ‘Others’. 
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Segment information can be analysed as follows for the reporting years under review:

31 March 2012

Real time 
processing

Back office 
services

Content 
delivery Others Total

Revenue from external 
customers 11,931,521 45,071,436 13,004,436 1,721,887 71,729,280

Other operating revenue 6,987 2,749 49,056 407,651 466,443

Segment revenues 11,938,508 45,074,185 13,053,492 2,129,538 72,195,723

Cost of outsourced 
services - 29,318,383 1,154,550 954,800 31,427,733

Employee benefit expense 7,237,175 - 6,980,775 113,626   14,331,576

Depreciation and 
amortisation 330,824 - 1,001,396 9,652 1,341,872

Other expenses 1,192,777 514,761 2,979,934 1,518,724 6,206,196

Segment operating profit 3,177,732 15,241,041 936,837 (467,264) 18,888,346

Segment assets 5,282,761 8,394,742 185,768,634 5,966,311 192,291,829

31 March 2011

Real time 
processing

Back office 
services

Content 
delivery Others Total

Revenue from external 
customers 8,049,788 39,183,105 - 2,101,000 49,333,893

Other operating revenue 21,662 4,392 - 26,054

Segment revenues 8,071,450 39,187,497 2,101,000 49,359,947

Cost of outsourced 
services 75,176 24,178,931 - 1,337,000 25,591,107

Employee benefit expense 4,933,542 - - - 4,933,542

Depreciation and 
amortisation 480,937 276,565 - - 757,502

Other expenses 1,088,903 580,474 - 153,724 1,823,101

Segment operating profit 1,492,892 14,151,527 - 610,276 16,254,695

Segment assets 5,051,512 7,746,424 - 12,716,179 25,514,115
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The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non-current assets (other than financial instruments, 
investments accounted for using the equity method, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets) are 
divided into the following geographical areas:

Location  Revenue Non-current 
assets Revenue Non-current 

assets

31 March 2012 31 March 2012 31 March 2011 31 March 2011

United Kingdom (Domicile) 1,717,480 - 196,488 -   

India 11,914,770 5,349,513 8,049,788 1,265,385  

USA 56,004,034 137,559,665 38,209,394 -

Rest of the world 2,092,996 66,714 2,878,223 -

Total 71,729,280 142,975,892 49,333,893 1,265,385

Revenues from external customers in the Group’s domicile, United Kingdom, as well as its major markets, India 
and the USA have been identified on the basis of the internal reporting systems.

In year ended 31 March 2012, revenue from one customer amounted to more than 10% of consolidated revenue 
during the year presented (31 March 2011: Two customers). 

31 March 2012

Revenue from  Segment Amount

Customer 1 Back office services 15,333,478

31 March 2011

Revenue from  Segment Amount

Customer 1 Back office services    6,248,778 

Customer 2 Back office services    8,960,144 
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value of carrying amounts of assets and liabilities presented in the statement of financial position relates to 
the following categories of assets and liabilities:

Financial assets 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Non-current assets

 Loans and receivables

 Security deposits 641,061  116,830 

  Restricted cash 77,284 577

  Others 977 -

Current assets 

 Loans and receivables

  Trade receivables 25,799,898 9,966,669 

  Due from parent company - 1,715,018  

  Unbilled revenue 236,616 116,877

  Other current assets 755,491 52,879 

  Cash and cash equivalents 11,478,220 12,232,458

  Restricted cash 2,673,944 -

  Security deposits 126,966 -

  Short term investments 84,785 -

41,875,242 24,201,308

Financial liabilities 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Non-current liabilities

 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

 Long term borrowings 1,012,004 76,662

Current liabilities

 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

 Trade payables 9,627,763 5,321,421

 Current portion of long term borrowings 425,034 97,969

 Short term borrowings 134,500,000 -

 Employee dues 3,232,727 650,299

 Others 670,865 -

 Fair value through profit and loss:

 Derivative financial instruments 2,349,616 -

151,818,009 6,146,351
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These financial assets and liabilities have been recorded at their respective carrying amounts as the management 
considers the fair values to be not materially different from their carrying amounts recognised in the statement of 
financial positions as these are expected to realize within one year from the reporting dates.

31. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

At 31 March 2012, the Group had a capital commitment of USD 33,929 for acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment.

During the year, subsidiary of iEnergizer, IHL has issued a guarantee in favor of Hewlett Packard Financial 
Services India Private Limited for the repayment of debt amounting to USD 68,028 repayable by iEnergizer IT 
Services Private Limited.

32. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose 
of these financial liabilities is to raise finances for the Group’s operations. The Group has trade and other 
receivables, other financial assets and cash and bank balances.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will have an effect on Group’s income or value of the 
financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s financial instruments affected by market risk include trade and other 
receivables, other financial assets, borrowings and trade and other payables.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2012. The analyses exclude 
the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of assets and liabilities other than financial assets 
and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant consolidated income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in 
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2012.

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group does not have any exposure to interest rate risk as there are no borrowings with floating interest rates.

Price risk sensitivity
The Group does not have any financial asset or liability exposed to price risk as at reporting date except for in 
respect of its derivatives which are fair valued through profit and loss account.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group renders services primarily to customers located in 
United States including those rendered by its Indian entities. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in 
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trades receivable and trade payables in USD on account of 
contracts for rendering the services and incurring the expenses entered by Indian entities in USD.

Net short term exposure in USD equivalents of foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities at 
each reporting date are as follows:
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Functional currency USD USD USD

Foreign currency AUD GBP EURO

31 March 2012

Financial assets 73,791 75,474 37,950

Financial liabilities 49,282 51,763 16,853

Net short term exposure 24,509 23,711 21,097

Functional currency USD USD USD

Foreign currency AUD GBP EURO

31 March 2011

Financial assets 64,134 33,407 -

Financial liabilities 52,926 23,778 -

Net short term exposure 11,208 9,629 -

In computing the below sensitivity analysis, the management has assumed the following % movement between 
various foreign currencies and the underlying functional currency:

Functional currency 31 March 2011 31 March 2010

AUD +-0.73% +-11%

GBP +-0.27% +-7%

EUR +-6.23% -

The following table details Group’s sensitivity to appreciation or depreciation in functional currency vis-a-vis the 
currency in which the foreign currency financial assets and liabilities are denominated:

Functional currency USD USD USD

Foreign currency AUD GBP EURO

31 March 2012 179 64 1,238

31 March 2011 844 1,144 -

If the functional currency had weakened with respect to various currencies by the percentages mentioned above, 
for years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 then the effect will be change in profit and equity for the year by 
USD 1,481 (31 March 2011: USD 1,988). If the functional currency had strengthened with respect to the various 
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit and equity for each year.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk arises from debtors’ inability to make payment of their obligations to the Group as they become due; 
and by non-compliance by the counterparties in transactions in cash, which is limited, to balances deposited in 
banks and accounts receivable at the respective reporting dates. The Group is not exposed to any significant 
credit risk on other financial assets and balances with banks. Further analysis for each category is detailed below:
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Trade receivables 
In case of trade receivables,  its customers are given a small credit period of 30 to 75 days and the customers do 
not generally default and make payments on time and other receivables were immediately recoverable and were 
subsequently recovered from the counterparty. 

Top five customers for the year ended 31 March 2011 are USD 11,820,842 being 45.82% (31 March 2011 
USD 4,435,616 being 44.50%) of net trade receivables.  An analysis of age of trade receivables at each 
reporting date is summarised as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2012
Gross Impairment

Not past due 14,007,674 -

Past due less than three months 7,774,845 -

Past due more than three months but not more than six months 2,132,307 -

Past due more than six months but not more than one year 1,885,072 -

More than one year - -

Total 25,799,898 -

Particulars 31 March 2011

Gross Impairment

Not past due 4,475,572 -  

Past due less than three months 4,043,329 -  

Past due more than three months but not more than six months 1,447,768 -   

Past due more than six months but not more than one year 45,356 45,356

Total 10,012,025 45,356

Other financial assets
In case of other financial assets, all the current balances are recoverable on demand while the non-current 
balances are primarily on account of security deposits given for land and building take on lease and the Group 
does not believe that it has any significant credit risk as the security deposits paid under long-term arrangements 
are effectively secured against land and building taken on lease under the respective arrangements.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk in other financial assets is summarised as follows:

31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Security deposits 768,027 124,886

Restricted cash 2,751,228 577

Cash and cash equivalent 11,478,220 12,232,458

Short term investments 84,785 -

Unbilled revenue 236,616 116,877

Due from parent company - 1,715,018

Other current assets 755,491 52,879

Total 16,074,367 14,242,695

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible as counterparties are banks. The 
management considers the credit quality of deposits with such banks to be good and reviews the banking 
relationships on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk arising from the Group’s trade and other receivables and other 
financial assets at the respective reporting dates is represented by the carrying value of each of these assets.

The Group does not hold any collateral against any of its assets as of 31 March 2012.

Credit risk concentrations exist when changes in economic, industrial or geographic factors take place, affecting 
in the same manner the Group’s counterparties whose added risk exposure is significant to the Group’s total 
credit exposure. 

LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity needs of the Group are monitored on the basis of future cash flow projections. The Group manages its 
liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash flows from customers and by maintaining adequate cash and 
cash equivalents and short terms investments. Net cash requirement are compared to available cash in order to 
determine any shortfalls. 

Short terms liquidity requirements comprises mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, and employee dues 
arising during normal course of business as on each reporting date. The Group maintains a minimum of sixty days 
of short term liquidity requirements in cash and cash equivalents. Long term liquidity requirement is assessed by 
the management on periodical basis and is managed through internal accruals and through the management’s 
ability to negotiate borrowing facilities. Derivative financial instruments reflect forward exchange contracts that 
will be settled on a gross basis.
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As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s liabilities having contractual maturities are summarised as follows: 

31 March 2012 Current Non-current

Financial liabilities Due within 
60 days

Due in 61 days 
to 365 days

Due in more than 
1 year

Trade payables 4,653,592 494,954 -

Expenses payable 1,519,711 2,959,506 -

Borrowings 114,559,965 20,365,069 1,012,004

Employee dues 1,992,257 1,240,470 -

Derivative financial instruments 229,449 2,120,166 -

Other dues 6,087 664,777 -

Total 122,961,061 27,844,942 1,012,004

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s liabilities having contractual maturities are summarised as follows: 

31 March 2011 Current Non-current

Financial liabilities Due within 
60 days

Due in 61 days 
to 365 days

Due in more than 
1 year

Trade payables 2,516,822 295,064 -   

Expenses payable 2,509,622  -  -

Borrowings 16,328 81,641 76,662

Employee dues 650,299 - -

Total 5,693,071  376,705 76,662

33. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2 –  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
 Level 3 –  Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs).
No financial assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 and 3 fair value measurements.
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Fair value measurements at 
reporting date using

31 March 2012 Total Level 2

Assets

Derivative instruments

Forward contracts (currency – USD/INR) 27,150,000 27,150,000 

There were no derivative instruments classified in Level 2 as of March 31, 2011 

34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital comprises of equity attributable to the equity holder of the parent. 

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to reduce net debt over time whilst investing in 
business and maximizing shareholder value. In order to meet this objective, the Group may issue or repay debt, 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The 
Group monitors gearing ratio i.e. total debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and debt. 
Total equity comprises of all the components of equity (i.e., share capital, additional paid in capital, retained 
earnings etc.). Total debt comprises of all financial liabilities of the Group.

  31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Total equity 31,254,182 19,003,886

Total debts 151,818,009 6,146,351

Overall financing 183,072,191 25,150,237

Gearing ratio 0.83 0.24

The management of the Group regularly reviews the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of 
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of the Group.

35. POST REPORTING EVENTS

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date of 
authorisation.




